NPS Form 10-800

OMB No. 1024-001¢
(Rev. 10-90)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

__lational Register of Historic Places

J—

AY

egistration Form
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appropriate box or by entering the information requested. if any item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for
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1. Name of Property

historic name___Ringgold Historic District
other names/site number _ WA-IV-007

2. Location

street & number _portions of Barkdoll, Midvale, and Misty Meadow Roads not for publication N/A
city or town___Ringgold vicinity _N/A

state _Maryland code _MD___ county _Washington __ code_043 _  zip code 21742

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, | hereby certify that this ____ namination
request for determination of eligiility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and
meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, theproperty _meets _____ does not meet the
National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant ____ nationally ___ statewide ___ locally. (____ See
continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signature of certifying official/ Title 4 Date

Stafe or Federal agency and burea

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. ( ___ See continuation shest for additional comments.)

Signature of commenting official Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification

| hereby certify that this property is: Signature of the Keeper Date of Action
—_____ entered in the National Register

— See continuation sheet.

determined eligible for the National Register
___ See continuation sheet.

determined not eligible for the National Register

—

____ removed from the National Register

other (explain):




Ringgold Historic District W iA-n-7 Washington County, MD

Name of Property County and State
5. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
~heck as many boxes as apply) {Check only ane bax) {Do nat include previously-isted resources in the count)
X private ___ building(s) Contributing  Noncontributing
public-local _X_ district 41 4 buildings
public-State site 1 sites
public-Federal structure structures
object objects
42 4 Total
Name of related multiple property listing Number of contributing resources previously
(enter “N/A" if property is not part of a muitiple property listing) listed in the National Register
N/A none

— L

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categories from instructions)
DOMESTIC/single dwelling DOMESTIC/single dwelling
DOMESTIC/secondary structure DOMESTIC/secondary structure
RELIGION/church RELIGION/church
AGRICULTURE/agricultural outbuilding AGRICULTURE icultural outbuildi
FUNERARY/cemetery VACANT/not in use

- X Description

.chitectural Classification Materials

(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categories from instructions)
EARLY REPUBLIC/Federal foundation_STONE/sandstone; BRICK
MID-19TH CENTURY/Gothic Revival walls BRICK; STONE: WOOD/weatherboard
LATE VICTORIAN/Ttalianate roof ASPHALT: SLATE

LATE 19™ & EARLY 20™ CENTURY AMERICAN other

MOVEMENTS/Bungalow/Craftsman
LATE 19™ & EARLY 20™ CENTURY AMERICAN
MOVEMENTS/American Foursquare

LATE 19™ & 20™ CENTURY REVIVALS/Colonial
Revival

Refer to Continuation Sheet

rrative Description
wsescribe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets)
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8. Statement of Significance
Applicable National Register Criteria Areas of Significance
“Mark "X in one or more baxes for the criteria qualifying the property (Enter calegories from instructions)
i _. - National Register listing)
___ A Property is associated with events that have made ARCHITECTURE
a significant contribution to the broad pattems of
our history.
____ B Property is associated with the lives of persons Period of Significance
significant in our past. c. 1825¢. 1920
_v_C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses Significant Dates
high artistic values, or represents a significantand N/A
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.
Significant Person
___ D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, (Complete i Criterion B is marked above)
information important in prehistory or history. N/A

Criteria Considerations
Mark “X" in all the boxes that apply.)

Cultural Affiliation

Property is: N/A
- __ A owned by a religious institution or used for
Lo— religious purposes. .
Architect/Builder

___ B removed from its original location.

C abirthplace or a grave.

D a cemetery.
____ E areconstructed building, object, or structure.
F acommemorative property.

G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years

Narrative Statement of Significance
(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography .
(Cite the books, articles, and ather sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

Primary location of additional data:

___ preliminary determination of individual listing (36 —__ State Historic Preservation Office
CFR 67) has been requested. _____ Other state agency
___  previously listed in the National Register Federal agency
___ previously determined eligible by the National Register Local government
— _ . designated a National Historic Landmark University
_  recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey Other
# : Name of repository:

recorded by Historic American Engineering
Record #
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10. Geographical Data

“creage of Property _43 acres

s

(M References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet)

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
118 279900 4399220 3 18 280160 4389480
2 18 280040 4399200 4 18 279820 4398280

N/A _See continuation sheet.

Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the praperty on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle  David L. Taylor. Principal

organization___ Taylor & Taylor Associates, Inc. date July, 2001
street & number__9 Walnut Street telephone __814-849-4900
city or town _Brookville state__PA _ zip code 15825

“ditional Documentation
- <omit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets

Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property’s location.
A sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items

(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)
Property Owner

(Camplete this kem & the request of the SHPO or FPO.)

name Multiple owners (refer to Continuation Sheet)

street & number telephone

city or town state zip code

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for appiications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate properties for

listing or detenmine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend exdsting listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a benefit in accordance with

the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

" ‘mated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including the time for reviewing instructions,
nering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of this form to the Chief,

Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.0. Bax 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork

Reductions Project (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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7. Description

The Ringgold Historic District is a primarily residential historic district of forty-three acres located in the
unincorporated village of Ringgold in the northwestern quadrant of Election District No. 14 (the Ringgold District),
in rural northern Washington County, Maryland, approximately twelve miles northeast of the county seat of Hagers-
town and less than one-half mile south of the Mason-Dixon Line and the Franklin County, Pennsylvania border. The
district includes portions of Barkdoll Street (Maryland Route 847), Midvale Street, and Misty Meadow Road. The
Ringgold District contains a total of 46 resources, 42 of which (90%) contribute to the character of the district and
4 (10%) are non-contributing. Non-contributing resources are buildings erected outside the c. 1825-c. 1920 Period
of Significance of the district and others, the extent of whose alteration has resulted in a loss of historic architectural
integrity and their classification as non-contributing resources. All of the properties in the district are buildings except
for the Springfield Cemetery (Resource No. 31), which is a contributing site within the context of the nomination.
Approximately seventy-five percent of the resources in the district pre-date 1900, approximately fifteen percent of the

' —esources were constructed between 1900 and the end of the Period of Significance c. 1920, and the remaining approxi-
wiately ten percent are of modern construction and are non-contributing to the character of the district. The predomi-
nant character of the district is that of a rural western Maryland hamlet located atop a hill overlooking a spacious valley
and consisting primarily of a single linear thoroughfare.

The architecture of the Ringgold Historic District consists principally of modest vernacular residences of two
stories in height, located on cither side of Barkdoll Street and on parts of Midvale Street and Misty Meadow Road.! A
relatively small number of more pretentious homes represent a higher degree of sophistication than is seen in most of
the architectural resources of the district. The vast majority of the district’s architecture is of wood construction. Most
of the homes retain front porches of varying scales and forms along with associated domestic outbuildings including
sheds and garages. Larger dependencies are included in the resource count, while smaller outbuildings (sheds, small
automobile garages, etc.) are treated as low-scale landscape features and are not represented in the count. The district
retains integrity in each of its seven qualities: location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association.

The building lots of the Ringgold Historic District are irregular in plan, and reflect the patterns of traditional,
unplanned, and unregulated subdivision of land generations prior to the onset of uniform formal subdivision require-

—

!Alterations to Maryland Route 64 include a large cut and the bypassing of much of Ringgold, which left a portion
of the community south of Route 64, indluding the District 14 School, a Colonial Revival-style brick school building, which
appears to be minimally altcred but is outside the district, scparated by the expanse of the Route 64 cut. The school appears
to mect National Register eligibility requircments as an individual property under Criteria A and C.
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ments. The topography rises considerably from Route 418 (which bypasses the district) to Barddoll Road, which is
the principal north-south thoroughfare in the district. Property setback lines are irregular throughout the district and
landscaping includes lawns both large and small.

The buildings in the district are rectilinear in form and generally vary in height between one-and-one-half and
two-and-one-half stories. Most buildings are roofed with laterally-oriented gablc roofs, clad in standing-seam metal or
in asphalt shingles. Some historic chimneys have been retained, while others have been removed in the course of
retrofitting heating systems and replacing roofs. Fenestration is nearly exclusively flat-topped; in several instances, a
pointed-arch window suggests design influence from the Gothic Revival style of architecture; for the most part, win-

dows are generally sparsely ornamented; some multi-light historic sash has been retained. The majority of the buildings
in the district rest on substantal foundations of coursed rock-faced limestone.

_ As noted above, the architectural character of the Ringgold Historic District is primarily vernacular, with most
- ildings executed without reference to any particular formal building style. Some traditional house types are found
in the district, including side-passage single-pile homes and central-passage double-pile houses to which have been
appended later additions. Some properties exhibit more design sophistication than others. Among these are 14510,
14321, 14527, and 14537 Barkdoll Road (Resource Nos.13, 24, 31, ands 34, respectively), which are Federal-style
houses. The Federal-style homes are of two stories, some with three-bay facades and others with five-bay arrangements.
All are of brick construction, and some employ Flemish bond brick treatment while others are of common bond. One
Italianate property is in Ringgold; it is a two-story brick building which appears to have been a commercial property
which has been converted to residential use. Vernacular adaptations of the Gothic Revival style are located at 14528,
14432, and 14410 Barkdoll Road (Resource Nos. 7, 14, and 18, respectively). The Gothic Revival influence is seen
in centered gables on facades and pointed-arched pedimental windows. The Colonial Revival style is represented in a
vernacular adaptation seen at 14420 Barkdoll Road (Resource No. 17), which is a two-story wood residence with a
centered gable on the facade and a Palladian window in the pediment of the gable. One Bungalow is in the district

(14541 Barkdoll Road; Resource No. 35) and an American Foursquare is located at 22901 Midvale Road (Resource
No. 22).

Near the center of the Ringgold Historic District is the only contributing site, the Springfield Cemetery (Re-

_source No. 31), which lies aldng a hillside east of Barkdoll Road. Near the foot of this hill immediately inside the
—strict’s eastern boundary, is the River Brethren Church Meeting House, an 1871 vernacular church building of brick
construction, with a laterally-oriented gable roof and five-bay lateral elevations punctuated by flat-topped fenestration
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with operable exterior shutters.

As noted in the introductory paragraph, the Ringgold Historic District retains historic and architectural integ-
rity. Although modest in its scale and detailing, the overall character of the district is intact and represents the early
growth and maturity of this hamlet throughout its Period of Significance. Very little demolition has occurred and only
a very small number of newer buildings-modern residences and garages-have been built within the boundaries of the
nominated area. Alterations to buildings within the district include the application of non-historic siding and the
installation of replacement windows. These alterations are dispersed throughout the district and do not detract signifi-
cantly from the ability of the nominated area to reflect its appearance throughout the Period of Significance.

Viewed in its entirety, the Ringgold Historic District is an architecturally-cohesive settlement which grew up
along Barkdoll Road after the initial 1825 settlement of the community by pioneer Joseph Creager. The nominated
,  area retains integrity and contains forty modestly-scaled historic residential properties, one historic church, and one
~ 7 ntributing site.

The following properties lic within the Ringgold Historic District. The numbering corresponds to the district
map which was submitted with the nomination documents. All properties are assumed to contribute to the character
of the district except those after whose description an “NC” appears; these properties are non-contributing to the
character of the district, either because they date from outside the Period of Significance of the district or because their
extent of alteradon has significantly compromised their individual character with reference to the district. The dates
of construction are generally approximate and are based upon physical examination, upon the scant written documenta-

tion which exists for the district, and upon oral interviews conducted in the course of the preparation of the National
Register documents. :

1. 14606 Barkdoll Road 1%4-story vernacular cottage of wood construction with a laterally-oriented gable
' roof and intersecting gabled pavilion entrance projecting at the right side; win-
dows flat-topped without notable ornament (c. 1900)

2. 14548 Barkdoll Road two-story vernacular residence of wood construction with laterally-oriented
gable roof and gablet on the facade; shiplap siding; two-bay facade; windows

: 2/2; single-story hip-roofed roof veranda wraps around the facade and side

- : clevation (c. 1900)

3. 14542 Barkdoll Road two-story vernacular residence of brick with a five-bay facade and laterally-ori-
ented gable roof of standing seam metal, with interior gable-end chimneys;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

rear, 14542 Barkdoll Road

14538 Barkdoll Road

14532 Barkdoll Road

14528 Barkdoll Road

rear, 14528 Barkdoll Road
rear, 14528 Barkdoll Road

14524 Barkdoll Road

rear, 14524 Barkdoll Road

14520 Barkdoll Road

14510 Barkdoll Road

14432 Barkdoll Road

some muiti-light sash has been retained, although most historic sash has been
replaced; one-story porch on the facade set on a foundation of concrete block;
in front of the house is a well with an hand pump, which is a contributing fea-
ture within the context of the resource (c. 1830)

1%-story two-bay automobile garage with gable roof (c. 1920)

1'4-story residence of indeterminate age considerably altered with the installa-
tion of non-historic siding, with a resultant loss of integrity (c. 1900; NC)

two-story vernacular residence of wood frame construction built on a raised
foundation with a two-bay facade and the main entrance offset on the right side,
suggestinga side-passage interior plan; laterally-oriented gable roof; single-story
addition on the right side with modern bay window (c. 1850)

two-story Gothic Revival vernacular residence of wood with laterally-oriented
gable roof and center gable on facade; three-bay facade with a one-story bay
window oa the right side; one-story wrap-around veranda; non-historic siding
(c. 1880)

wood frame dependency of indeterminate age and function
wood frame dependency of indeterminate age and function

two-story vernacular residence of wood construction with laterally-oriented
gable roof;, four-bay facade; windows 2/2, flat topped; paired entry doors on
the facade; interior gable end chimneys; one-story shed roof porch (c. 1830)

two-story dependency of wood construction at rear of main house (c. 1870)

two story vernacular residence of wood construction with a laterally oriented-
gable roof of standing seam metal; two-bay facade with the main entrance offset

on the right, suggesting a side-passage interior plan; non-historic siding (c.
1850)

2Y4-story Federal-style brick residence with a three-bay facade, laterally-oriented
gable roof with shed-roofed wall dormers; some 9/6 sash remains; original first-
floor entryway with side lights and distinctive six-panel wood door; two-story
gallery porch on facade (c. 1830)

2%-story Gothic Revival vernacular residence of wood construction with
laterally-oriented gable roof and centered gablet on the three-bay facade; cen-
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

14426 Barkdoll Road
14422 Barkdoll Road
14420 Barkdoll Road
14410 Barkdoll Road

14402 Barkdoll Road

rear, 14402 Barkdoll Road

22932 Midvale Road

22901 Midvale Road

22905 Midvale Road

14321 Barkdoll Road

tered entryway with transom and sidelights; extending across the facade is a
highly ornamented locally distinctive porch with a square balustrade. (c. 1850)

2-story vernacular Italianate brick building with three-bay facade; flat-roof with
a stylized cornice; windows 2/2 (c. 1870)

vernacular wood frame church with a large modern addition dated 1978 which
edipses the original historic building, with a resultant lost of integrity (NC)

2%-story Colonial Revival vernacular residence of wood construction with a
laterally-oriented gable roof and a large intersecting gable with a Palladian win-
dow in the pediment; three-bay facade; two-story bay window; windows flat
topped; stone retaining wall with ball finial ornamentation (c. 1910)

2%-story Gothic Revival vernacular residence of wood built on a raised founda-
tion with a laterally-oriented gable roof; three-bay facade with a center gable
with a pointed-arched window in the pediment; non-historic siding (c. 1860)

two-story vernacular residence of wood construction with a three-bay facade;
windows flat-topped 2/2; laterally-oriented gable roof; non-historic siding (c.
1850)

within the context of this district, this is a large two-story barn of wood con-
struction, with a gable roof and clad in corrugated metal siding (c. 1900)

in the context of this district, this is a comparatively large-scale brick residental
building with five-bay facade and laterally-oriented gable roof with interior
gable-end chimneys; windows flat-topped; decorative brick eave treatment; a
broad early-twentieth-century veranda extends across the facade and wraps arou-
nd a portion of the right side (c. 1840)

2% -story American Foursquare of wood construction, with a two-bay facade
with the entry offset on the left side; hipped roof with intersecting gable with
original slate cladding retained; a hip dormer is on facade; non-historic siding;
several out buildings of undetermined age and usage (1908)

utilitarian outbuildings, clad in non-historic siding with a variety of other alter-
ations and additions, with a resultant loss of integrity (NC)
2Y%-story, three-bay Federal-style residence of brick with some non-historic

siding; three-bay facade; windows flat-topped with jack-arched lintels; a one-
story Victorian-cra porch extends across the facade (c. 1840)
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25.

27.

29.

30.

31.

23007 Midvale Road

23024 Midvale Road

single-story vernacular cottage of wood construction with laterally-oriented
gable roof and interior gable-end chimneys with corbeled brick trim; shiplap
siding; one-story one-bay porch on facade; windows flat-topped without dis-
tinctive ornament (c. 1880)

2%:-story vernacular residence of wood construction with a three-bay facade;
raised foundation of coursed rubble stone; windows are flat-topped 2/2, with
pedimented heads; non-historic siding; several outbuildings, including a mod-
ern cement block garage, a board-and-batten smoke house, and a metal frame
building just beyond the house (c. 1880)

14426 Misty Meadow Road (River Brethren Church Meeting House) vernacular brick church building,

14403 Barkdoll Road

east side, Barkdoll Road

14517-19 Barkdoll Road

14527 Barkdoll Road

rectangular in plan, with a gable roof; windows are flat-topped with multi-light
historic wood sash and exterior operable shutters; sparsely ornamented; signifi-
cant to the local religious heritage of the Ringgold community (1871)

2Y5-story eclectic residence of wood construction with an intersecting gable
roof;; three-bay facade with a single-story Neo-Classical Revival vernacular ve-
randa; windows flat topped 2/2 with, pedimented heads and chronologically
inappropriate exterior shutters; the pediments of the gables are shingled with
decorative shingling trimmed with pointed-arched windows (c. 1900)

Springfield Cemetery, a 3.08-acre contributing site within the context of the
historic district; this is a community cemetery located on a side hill with the
meeting house at the foot of the hill; throughout the cemetery are a variety of
relatively small-scale unornamented stones; the entry gate portals remain, and
were produced by the Rodgers Fence Company of Springfield, Ohio; long
associated with the Church of the Brethren (See Resource No. 29), in 1996 the
ownership of the Cemetery was transferred to the Ringgold Cemetery Associa-
tion, Inc.

two-story double house of wood construction, set on a foundation of fieldstone
with a laterally-oriented gable roof; some original 6/6 windows, flat topped
with shutter hangers (c. 1850)

22-story Federal-style house of brick construction with Flemish bond on the
symmetrical five-bay facade; centered entry suggesting a central-passage single-
pile interior arrangement; interior gable-end chimneys; widows flat-topped with
six-light sash remaining; exterior operable shutters; one-story raised porch; a
stone retaining wall extends along the front perimeter of the lot, incorporating
entry gates with ball finials (c. 1820)
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32.

33.

34.

35.

37.

38.

39.

4]1.

L.

rear 14527 Barkdoll Road vernacular outbuilding of wood construction (c. 1890)

rear 14527 Barkdoll Road vernacular outbuilding of wood construction (c. 1890)

14537 Barkdoll Road

14541 Barkdoll Road

14545 Barkdoll Road

14601 Barkdoll Road

14607 Barkdoll Road

rear 14607 Barkdoll Road

14315 Barkdoll Road

14305 Barkdoll Road

14303 Barkdoll Road

five-bay Federal-style central-passage “I-house” of common bond brick con-
struction, with a five-bay facade and entrance with delicately glazed transom and
side lights; 6/6 sash remains along with exterior operable louvered shutters and
aone-story portico supported by wrought iron with some historic wrought iron
posts; distinctive molded wood cornice (c. 1820)

1¥2-story Craftsman-style Bungalow of wood construction with laterally-ori-
ented gable roof and gable dormer on the two-bay facade; the main entrance
offset on the right; recessed front porch is supported by brick piers and is articu-
lated by a brick railing (c. 1913)

1%;-story vernacular cottage of wood construction with a two-bay facade and
lateraily-oriented gable roof standing seam metal; non-historic siding (c. 1920)

one-story cottage built outside the Period of Significance of the District (c.
1968; NC)

two-story vernacular residence of wood construction with laterally-oriented
gable roof punctuated by a brick central chimney; two-bay facade with the main
entrance offset on the right side; a one-story hipped-roof veranda with square
balustrade supported by plain columns extends across the facade; the exterior
surfaces are clad in asbestos shingles (c. 1880)

two-story insul-brick-clad outbuilding (c. 1910)

2Y-story vernacular brick residence with a gable roof; windows are flat-topped
with some 6/6 sash remaining; a one-story hipped-roofed veranda with a stand-
ing seam metal roof extends across two sides of the building (c. 1840)

1%4-story brick cottage, vernacular in character, with a laterally-oriented gable
roof; three-bay facade with centered entryway; onc-story shed roof porch with
a standing seam metal roof;, small-scale dependencies of indeterminate age and
usage (c. 1850)

1%2-story vernacular residence of wood construction, with laterally-oriented
gable roof; two distinct sections indicate that the building was built in stages;
some 6/6 sash remains, set in flat-topped openings; asbestos siding; one-story
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shed-roofed porch on the right side of the facade. (c. 1850)

43.  Rear, 14303 Barkdoll Road large wood barn with gable roof and gable-end orientation to the street (c.
1900)

44.  side, 14305 Barkdoll Road small-scale vernacular dependency of wood with standing seam metal roof

45. 14305 Barkdoll Road two-story vernacular residence with a laterally-oriented gable roof; the three-bay
facade suggests a side-passage interior plan; the house is built on a raised foun-
dation; non-historic siding (c. 1840)

46. 14306 Barkdoll Road 2-story vernacular residence of wood construction, set on a raised foundation
of stone with an intersecting gable roof system; windows flat-topped, without
notable ornament; the principal facade faces the intersection of Barkdoll and
Midvale Roads and incorporates a wrap-around veranda with turned posts
which appear to be original; non-historic siding (c. 1870)
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8. Significance

The Ringgold Historic District is significant under National Register Criterion C for architecture, containing
a contiguous collection of locally-significant properties which reflect both popular styles of design prevalent in western
Maryland from the 1820s through the 1920s and vernacular architecture representative of local building traditions in
the area. The majority of properties in the Ringgold Historic District reflects primarily vernacular design in the rural
reaches of western Maryland throughout the Period of Significance, which begins in 1825 when pioneer settler John

Figure 1 This excerpt from Thomas Taggert’s 1859 map

illustrates the extent of development of Ringgold at that

time, a little more than a quarter-century after the
~gstablishment of the settlement.

Creager erected a log house in the area (not extant), spans the dates
of construction of the district’s earliest extant buildings (Resource
Nos. 3, 6, 14, 24, 34, and 37), and ends c. 1920, the approximate
date of construction of the latest of the district’s historic resources
(Resource No. 36). The district contains locally-distinctive examples
of vernacular architecture which, although executed without refer-
ence to formal design tenets, nonetheless represent the manifestation
of local building traditions in this section of Washington County.
The district contains only limited examples of formal styles including
the Federal, Gothic Revival, Italianate, Bungalow, Colonial Revival,
and American Foursquare. Specific examples of each of these appear
in Section 7 of this narrative. The River Brethren Meeting House
(Resource No. 29) is the district’s only contributing institutional
building and is a local manifestation of unadorned, vernacular reli-
gious architecture. The Springfield Cemetery (Resource No. 31) is
a contributing site within the context of the district and reflects the
self-sufficiency of early nineteenth-century western Maryland commu-
nities which provided a full range of services-including burial-+to
their citizens. The Ringgold Historic District clearly retains its his-
toric rural character along with the physical integrity necessary to
reflect its appearance during its Period of Significance.

The Ringgold Historic District is located in Washington
County Election District No. 14, which is known as the Ringgold

District, in northern Washington County; the Election District’s northern boundary is the Mason-Dixon line separating
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RINGGOLD

RINGGOLD DIST.

Figure 2 The 1877 Washington
County Atlas indicates that at that
time, the village of Ringgold had de-
veloped to the general area covered by
the nominated area.

Maryland from Pennsylvania. The village was settled by John Creager who erected
a log house there in 1825 (not extant).? The community was first known as Ridge-
ville, due to its siting atop a plateau overlooking the valley west of South Mountain.
The settlement soon became relatively self-sufficient, including a store operated by C.
Hoffman, a doctor’s office, a wagon shop, a school and the River Brethren Church.
The church (Resource No. 29) is of brick construction, measuring 40' X 65', and was
erected in 1871 at a cost of $6,000. Adjoining the church is the Springfield Cemetery
(Resource No. 31). Located along a hillside, the cemetery was apparently originally
enclosed within an iron fence, only the gateposts of which remain. According to
Scharfs 1906 History of Western Maryland, the cemetery was used as a burial
ground even before John Creager built the first house in the village in 1825, since the
carliest interment was that of Henry Lesher, who died in 1821.°

The post office was established here in 1850, at which time the name
of the community was changed from Ridgeville to Ringgold, honoring Sam-

~ uel Ringgold (1770-1829). The village’s namesake came from Kent, England

and built “Fountain Rock” from designs by America’s premiere early architect,
Benjamin Henry Latrobe. Ringgold owned 17,000 acres in the area, was a
leading politician, and served in the state militia.

Early citizens of the community, who were recorded in an 1877 county
atlas, include Dr. Frank Barkdoll, a local physician who settled there in 1845,
Lewis Barkdoll, a blacksmith who arrived in 1841; the village’s principal thor-
oughfare bears the name of this pioneer family. The community’s pioneer
educator, Joseph O. Flory, came to the village in 1840.* Ringgold grew

o Written documentation of Ringgold is sparsc. Most historical information comes from two county and regional
historics, both of which are cited fully in the Bibliography.

—~  Pscharf, J. Thomas History of Washington County, Maryland 1882; rpt. Baltimore: Regional Publishing

Company, 1968, p. 1292.

“An Illustrated Atlas of Washington County, Maryland Philadelphia: Lake, Griffing, & Co., 1877.
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slowly and except for two churches, the River Brethren and the Church of Christ, the village displayed few
trappings of institutional and social growth. Clearly ruralin character, the community’s commercial endeavors
were confined to a wagon shop, a blacksmith, and the store of C. Hoffman at the intersection of Barkdoll and
Midvale Roads. By the 1890s, Ringgold had a population of only 199. Very little occurred to alter the
community during the twentieth century. A new school for District 14 was built c. 1915; Colonial Revival
in design, it is located on Windy Haven Road and was cut off completely from the historic core of the Village
with the cut and rerouting of Route 64. A few newer homes were erected and a large addition was placed
onto the Church of Christ. A significant change to the community occurred when a new Maryland Route
419 was built and bypassed the village to the south. Throughout its Period of Significance, the village re-
mained an unindustrialized and uncommercialized hamlet, a character which it retains at the time of the
preparation of this nomination. |

t o

Viewing Ringgold in the context of other nearby historic districts, this area can be compared and
contracted with the districts at Cavetown, Pen Mar and Highfield, in northern Washington County, with
more urban districts in Hagerstown, the county seat, and with Fairplay, Tilghmanton, Sharpsburg, and
Antietam Village in the southern reaches of the county. Ringgold most closely approximates character of
Cavetown, with residential buildings, generally vernacular in character, existing in the setting of a rural hamlet
with few embellishments of social maturity. Pen Mar does not possess the significant collection of historic
residential architecture which is present in Ringgold, and that of Highfield dates from much later than Ring-
gold, during the period when that particular Blue Ridge Mountain resort community was growing early in
the twentieth century. Tilghmanton and Fairplay contain vernacular and Federal-style domestic architecture
similar to Ringgold. Sharpsburg is defined by a Main Street commercial area and distinct residential neigh-
borhoods, all closely associated with the Civil War. The district at Antictam Village developed as an early
company town related to an iron furnace and also is associated with a historic context related to the Chesa-
peake and Ohio Canal. Ringgold can claim none of these contextual links. The districts in Hagerstown are
far more urban in character and include a substantial downtown area, which Ringgold does not possess.
Ringgold stands as a locally-distinctive rural, agrarian, non-commercial and unindustrialized western Maryland
—llage containing primarily vernacular domestic architecture dating from the 1820s through the 1920s.
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~MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA

Geographic Organization

Western Maryland

Chronological Developmental Period(s)

Agricultural-Industrial Transition A. D. 1815-1870

Prehistoric/Historic Period Theme(s)

Architecture, Laﬁdscapc Architecture, & Community
Planning

Resource Type Category: District
Historic Environment: Village, Rural

Historic Function(s) and Use(s) DOMESTIC/single dwelling
DOMESTIC/secondary structure
RELIGION/church
FUNERARY/cemetery
COMMERCE[I'RADE/storc

I Known Dcsg Sources Nonc
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10. Geographical Data

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Beginning at the northwestern corner of Misty Meadow Road and Midvale Road, then northwesterly along the
west curbline of Misty Meadow Road c. 540" and following the d\south curbline of Misty Meadow Road an additional
c. 390" to the west curbline of Barkdoll Road; then northerly along the west curb line of Barkdoll Road c. 420" to a point
opposite the southwest property corner of the property at 14517 Barkdoll Road (Resource No. 32); then northeasterly
along the southern property line of the property at 14517 Barkdoll Road c. 330' to the southeastern corner of the
property at 14517 Barkdoll Road; then northerly along the rear lot lines of the properties facing Barkdoll Road c. 750'
to the southeastern corner of the property at 14601 Barkdoll Road (Resource No. 39); then easterly along the rear
property line of the property at 14601 Barkdoll Road c. 225 to the rear property line of the property located at 14601
Barkdoll Road; then northwesterly along the rear property lines of 146091 and 14607 Barkdoll Road (Resource Nos,
- 39, 40, and 41, respectively) c. 210’ to the northeastern corner of the property at 14607 Barkdoll Road (Resource No.,

"), then westerly along the north property line of 14607 Barkdoll Road, crossing Barkdoll Road, and continuing for
atotal of c. 660’ to the northwest corner of the property at 14606 Barkdoll Road (Resource No. 1); then southwesterly
along the rear property liens of the properties facing Barkdoll Road c. 900' to a point; then c. 150" east to the northwest
corner of the property at 14518 Barkdoll Road; then southerly a total of 1,590' along the rear property lines of the
propertied facing Barkdoll Road and crossing Midvale Road to the northwestern curbline of Midvale Road; then
southwesterly along the northwest curbline of Midvale Road c. 600’ to the north curb line of Maryland Route 419; then
easterly along the north curb line of Maryland Route 419 c. 540’ top a point; then northeasterly c. 540" along the rear
property lines of the properties facing Barkdoll Road to the southeast corner of the property at 23007 Midvale Road,;
then northerly along the east property line of 23007 Midvale road, and crossing Midvale Road a total of ¢. 150 to the
north curb line of Midvale Road; then easterly along the north curbline of Midvale Road c. 540' to the place of begin-
ning.

JUSTIFICATION

The boundaries of this nomination were selected to include the unincorporated village of Ringgold, including
domestic architecture dating from the early decades of the eighteenth century through the carly twentieth century, and
also including a historic brick church and it associated cemetery. The boundaries were selected in order to include as
much of the village as retains integrity of character and which dates from the Period of Significance, and to exclude areas
_which date from outside the Period of Significance or which have becn significantly altered. The boundaries incorporate

"~ ose properties which rcﬂoctthcngth and prosperity of the village during its years of initial settlement and maturity.
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Property Owners (as of July, 2001)

Albright Harris Desert Rose
14517 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742-4999

Lewis S. Stouffer
14527 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

John M & Laura B. Pangborn
14537 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Ethel Louise Cantner
- 14606 Barkdoll Road
( ~Hagerstown MD 21742-1475

Meda A. Werdebaugh
14607 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Joseph M & Molly A. Taylor
14541 Barkdoll Rd .
Hagerstown MD 21742-4999

G Dale Fishack, Jr.
14545 Barkdoll Rd
Hagerstown MD 21742-4999

James D. Foster
14601 Barkdoll Rd
Hagerstown MD 21742

John J. & Joyce G. Lefebure
14548 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

" mes Kittel, Jr.
14542 Barkdoll Rd
Hagerstown MD 21742
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David & Jenny R. May
14538 Barkdoll Rd
Hagerstown MD 21742-4998

Grover D. Rudolph
14532 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Elsie A. Huff -
14528 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Winifred G . Medcalf, ez Al
14524 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

(* terry G. Smith
~520 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Robert C. Hahn, Jr.
14518 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Dorothy Jane Pryor
14510 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Gerald L. & Dorothy P. Virden
14504 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Church of Christ Ringgold
14426 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

David M. & Jennifer Schell
14414 Barkdoll Road
" 1gerstown MD 21742
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Arthur F. & Frances L. Bayer
14410 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Arthur W. Oller
14403 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Robert E. & Lois R. Malott
14402 Barkdoll Road
Hagerstown MD 21742

Joseph L. Rohrer
23007 Midvale Street
Smithsburg MD 21783

- Norman C. Vickery
( 20Box8ll
aynesboro Pa 17268

John M. & Jane M. Barvir
22901 Midvale St .
Hagerstown MD 21742-4993

Robert L. & Darlene M. Jenkins
21643 Kelso Dr
Hagerstown MD 21742-9303

Robert 1. Diehl
23024 Midvale Street
Smithsburg MD 21783

Ringgold Cemetery Association Inc.
C/o Arthur F Bayer

14410 Barkdoll Road

Hagerstown MD 21740

Church of the Brethren in Christ
C/o Doris Horst ’
"~ 825 Garden Spot Drive
riagerstown MD 21740
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EJLOCATION
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Maryland Routes 64 and 418

CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
X vicinty of  Smithsburg 6
STATE COUNTY
Maryland Washington
[EJ CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT __PUBLIC Xoccurien __AGRICULTURE —_MUSEUM
X BUILDING(S) __PRIVATE —UNOCCUPIED XCOMMERCIAL __PARK
_—  _STRUCTURE X sotH __WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL XpRIVATE RESIDENCE
__SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS
_OBUECT __IN PROCESS Xves. RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT —SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED __YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
_NO __MILITARY __OTHER

Y OWNER OF PROPERTY

NAME
Multiple Owners

Telephone #:

STREET & NUMBER

CITY. TOWN sTaTe,, zip code
___ VICINITY OF
[FJLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION Liber
COURTHOUSE. Folio #:
REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC. VJaghington County Court House
STREET & NUMBER
West Washington Street
CITY. TOWN STATE
Hagerstown Maryland 21740
I REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TITLE
__ DATE
__FEDERAL __STATE __COUNTY _1OCAL
DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY,. TOWN

STATE
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DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
KexceLLenT __DETERIORATED __UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
—GOOD __RUINS A ateren < 50% __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Ringgold is a small rural community in northeastern Washington County. It consists of
one main street or roadway along which are a series of 19th century log sided, brick
and frame houses. Most of the housea are two story structures and nearly all have front
porches across most or all of the front wall. One prominent building on the edge of the
village is the Ringgold Brethren in Christ Meeting House built on September 1871, It

is a two story painted brick structure with common bond at all elevations.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
__PREHISTORIC  —ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __RELIGION
—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION __LAW __SCIENCE
—1500-1599 ZAGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—_1600-1699 ZARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY Xs0CIALHUMANITARIAN
—.1700-1799 _ART __ENGINEERING __MUSIC __THEATER
2 1800-1899 Xcommerce __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _ PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
__1900- _COMMUNICATIONS __INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER ({SPECIFY)
__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Ringgold is a typical rural village displaying a collection of vernacular 19th century
buildings.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EElF ORM PREPARED BY
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Paula Stoner, Architectural Historian
ORGANIZATION DATE
Preservation Associates July 1978
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
109 West Main Street, Box 202 301-432-5466
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Sharpsburg Maryland 21782

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
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(301) 267-1438
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